Hendrichs Co.

22007

RECORD BOOK

OF

CROSSWINDS ESTATES PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

A CORPORATION DULY ORGANIZED AND EXISTING

UNDER AND BY VIRTUE OF THE LAWS OF THE

STATE OF INDIANA

AND BY VIRTUE OF THE

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

ISSUED BY THE STATE OF INDIANA

ON THE PAYDAY OF OCTOBER, 1993.

ENTERED FOR RECORD

OCT 2 2 1993 N. 2:00 MENDOUS SUBSECTION 1983 - 198

800K 1978E 183

BY-LAWS

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

The following terms as used by these By-Laws are defined as follows:

- (A) "Association" means Crosswinds Estates Property Owners Association, an association composed of Owners of properties at Crosswinds Estates Subdivision, as the same may be shown on maps thereof recorded from time to time in the Recorder's Office of Hendricks County, Indiana.
- (B) "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Association which shall be intially comprised of Mark E. Sanders, or any person designated in writing by the foregoing person.
 - (C) "By-Laws" means the By-Laws of the Association.
- (D) "Common Properties" means and refers to those areas of land shown on any recorded subdivision plat, including any lakes or building(s) or other improvements thereof, and also including any so designated properties subsequently acquired by the Association held in ownership by the Association.
- (E) "Development" means Crosswinds Estates Subdivision as the same may be shown on maps thereof recorded from time to time.
- (F) "Developer" means Sanders Development Group, Inc., or any successor or assign of Sanders Development Group, Inc.
- (G) "Lot" means any parcel within the Development as the same may be shown by Lot number or tract number on maps thereof recorded from time to time in the Hendricks County Recorder's Office.
- (H) "Member" shall mean an Owner who is a member of the Association as provided in Article III hereof.
- (I) "Owner" means and refers to any person who purchases or otherwise acquires title to any lot including purchase under land contracts entitling such person to the use and occupancy of such lot.
- (J) "Regulation" means any rule or regulation adopted and published from time to time by the "Board."

(K) "Restrictive Covenants" means the Restrictions of "Crosswinds Estates" and succeeding restrictions for any new sections of the Development hereafter added imposed upon the Development, as duly recorded within the plat of Crosswinds Estates Subdivision, and all sections hereafter platted in the Recorder's Office of Hendricks County, Indiana, as amended from time to time, and applicable as restrictions upon title to all properties within or without the Development, which Covenants specifically apply to and run with the land comprising the Development.

ARTICLE II

PURPOSE

Section 1. To adopt rules and regulations in the best interest of the Association and its members.

Section 2. To own, build, administer and maintain community properties and facilities; to administer and enforce the Covenants and restrictions contained in the Declarations of Restrictive Covenants and in these By-Laws; to collect and disburse assessments and charges as permitted by law and under the Articles of Incorporation, to promote the common benefit and enjoyment of property owners of Crosswinds Estates Subdivision.

Section 3. To provide to the Owners maintenance, upkeep, and organization such as will promote the common properties as an attractive and meaningful amenity to the Subdivision.

ARTICLE III

MEMBERSHIP

The membership of the Association shall be comprised of all lot owners, in Crosswinds Estates Subdivision. There shall by the following classes of membership:

- (A) Voting Members. Voting members shall include every person or entity, including the Developer, who holds an equitable interest as land contract vendee or fee holder in any lot or lots included within the Crosswinds Estates Subdivision, provided that any such person or entity who holds such interest merely as security for the performance of an obligation shall not be a voting member.
- (B) Non-Voting Members. If not otherwise a voting member, each of the following shall be entitled to Non-Voting membership

BOOK 135 PAGE =

in the Association; the spouse, children and/or legal wards of a voting member, who have the same principal residence as the memeber and a lessee or tenant under a written lease of over six months duration. Non-Voting members shall have no vote or right to notice of any regular or special meetings of members. The privileges and duties of non-voting members shall be established from time to time by resolution of the Board and need not be the same as those of voting members.

Privileges of Voting Members and Non-Voting Members. Subject to the powers of the Board under Item B above with respect to voting members and non-voting members, in good standing, they shall be entitled to the use and enjoyment of the common properties and facilities, subject, however to provisions of the Restrictive Covenants and to such other regulations as may be established by the Board of Directors.

Assessments not paid when due shall be a continuing recorded lien upon the property pursuant to Paragraph 9 on the Restrictive Covenants.

ARTICLE IV

EVIDENCE OF MEMBERSHIP AND TRANSFER

Section 1. Membership Certificate. Certificates of membership in the Association may be issued to voting members and non-voting members. Such certificates shall be in such form as is authorized by the Board. The Certificate shall indicate whether the holder is a voting member or a non-voting member and, if appropriate, the member's lot number. The certificate shall also state upon its face that the Association is a not-for-profit organization. Records shall be maintained at the registered office of the Association of the names of voting members and non-voting members which records shall also indicate the class and date of membership.

Section 2. Transfer. When a member ceases to be a property owner, such person's membership, and those non-voting members existing through relationships to such person, shall cease, but such person shall remain liable for all Association charges incurred prior to the giving of written notice to the Association that such person is no longer a property owner. It is the transferring owner's obligation to provide the transferee with a copy of the Crosswinds Estates Restrictive Covenants and a copy of these By-Laws.

ARTICLE V

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 1. Place of Meeting of Association. All meetings of the members of the Association shall, if possible, be held within the Crosswinds Estates Subdivision, at such time and place as the Board shall determine.

Section 2. Annual Meetings. The annual meeting of the Association shall be held on the last Saturday of April in each year.

Section 3. Special Meetings of Association. Special meetings of the Association may be called by the Board of Directors and also may be called by the President, and shall be called by the President whenever requested in writing by one-half (1/2) or more members who are in good standing. Such request shall clearly state the purpose for which the special meeting is to be called.

Section 4. Notice of Meeting of the Association. Not less than thirty days written notice of the meeting shall be given by mail to each member entitled to vote at such meeting. When more than one person owns an interest in a lot, notice or other communications required by these By-Laws to be sent to members given to one co-owner shall be conclusively presumed to have been given to all other co-owners. The notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the U.S. Mail, first class postage pre-paid, addressed to the member's last known address, as recorded with the Association. The notice shall set out in reasonable detail the business to be brought before the meeting and each meeting shall be limited to the items set out in the notice, in order that those casting absentee ballots may be permitted to express their desires. The Secretary shall have the obligation to meet these requirements for Association meetings.

Section 5. Quorum of the Association. The presence of a Sixty percent (60%) or more of the voting members, either in person or by absentee ballot, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except when the subjects of special assessments for capital improvements and change in basis and/or assessments are considered, wherein the quorum and notice requirements shall be as stated in the Restrictive Covenants. If for any reason a meeting shall be not held on the date designated, such meeting may be rescheduled, provided however, that the notice of such rescheduled meeting shall be given not less than thirty days prior to the date of the rescheduled meeting.

138 187

Section 6. Voting of the Association. One vote shall be allocation for each lot owned to the owner or owners for each such lot. When a lot is owned by more than one member, the one vote allocated to such lot shall be cast as all members owning an interest in such lot shall agree. The Association may conclusively rely on the representations of one co-owner that he or she has the authority to cast the vote without requiring formal proxies from the other co-owners. If any dispute between co-owners as to how their lot's one vote shall be cast is made known to the meeting, no vote shall be counted for such lot. Voting at membership meetings shall be by a majority of the votes present as represented by persons or absentee ballots, unless a greater proportion is required by law or by the Restrictive Covenants.

- (A) Roll Call of Functionaries
- Reading of the Minutes of the previous meeting Reports of the Officers (B)
- (C)
- (D) Reports of Committees Unfinished business (E)
- New Business (F)
- Election of Director(s) (G)

Robert's Rules of Order shall be followed.

Section 8. Voting members may cast their votes either in person or by absentee ballot. The form of the absentee ballot shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

Section 9. A voting member must be in good standing in order for him to participate in any membership voting.

ARTICLE VI

ASSESSMENTS TO PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION

Section 1. Each owner of property shall pay assessments to Crosswinds Estates Property Owners Association as required under the Restrictive Covenants.

Section 2. Assessments levied by the Association shall be unsed to promote the recreation, health, safety and welfare of the residents in the Development and, in particular, for the improvement, maintenance and construction of facilities devoted to the use of all members.

Section 3. Annual assessments shall be paid in advance and shall be due on the dates specified in the Restrictive Covenants. No adjustments or prorations of assessments shall be made by the Association. The due date of any special assessment under the Restrictive Covenants shall be fixed in the Resolution authorizing such assessment.

Section 4. The Board shall prepare a roster of the properties and assessments applicable thereto at least thirty days in advance of such assessment due date. Such assessment roster shall be kept in the office of the Association and shall be open to inspection by an owner. Written notice of assessment shall be sent to every property owner subject thereto.

Section 5. If any assessment is not paid when due, such assessment, including the cost of collection thereof, shall become a continuing record lien on the property, which shall bind the property in the hands of the then owner, his heirs, devisees, personal representatives and assigns, in accordance with the Restrictive Covenants. If the assessment is not paid within thirty days after the due date, there shall be added to the delinquent assessment those penalty fees, interest, cost and reasonable attorney's fees authorized pursuant to the Restrictive Covenants.

Section 6. The lien for delinquent assessments provided for herein shall be subordinated to the lien of any mortgage or mortgages now or hereafter placed upon the properties pursuant to the Restrictive Covenants.

Section 7. Exempt Property. The following property subject to the Restrictive Covenants shall be exempt from the assessments, charges and liens, created therein:

- (A) All properties to the extent of any easement or other interest therein dedicated and accepted by a local public authority and devoted to public use;
- (B) All common properties as defined in Article I, Paragraph (D);
- (C) All properties exempted from taxation by the laws of the State of Indiana upon the terms and to the extent of such legal exemption;
- (D) All properties owned by the Developers, their assigns and successors, and held by them or any of them for the purposes of engaging in the business of sale or resale of such property, including any lots which may have been reacquired by the Developer.

Association pursuant to these By-Laws. Failure to do so shall justify the Board in suspending such voting member or non-voting member as is herein provided. The Board shall also employ a sufficent number of persons to adequately maintain the common properties. Further, the Board may adopt reasonable rules of order for the conduct of the meetings of the Board of Directors, and on procedural questions upon which no rules have been adopted the ruling of the Chairman of the Board shall be final. The Board may, in its discretion, by resolution, adopt Robert's Rules of Order as a guide for the conduct of all meetings.

- (E) The Board shall adopt a annual operating budget in accordance with Article VII, Section 2, hereof and levy the annual assessments per the Restrictive Covenants for each lot for the following year. Upon the adoption and approval of the budget, the Board shall be bound by the same. No expenditure in excess of the Budget shall be made unless it is authorized by the Board of Directors.
- (F) The Board of Directors may, by resolution, appoint committees of the Association. Such committees may be temporary or permanent. They shall have such powers and responsibilities as the Board may direct.

Section 2. Number of Directors. The number of directors shall be one initially and seven after expiration of the term of the initial Board of Directors. The initial Board of Directors shall be Mark E. Sanders, and that board shall hold office until three-fourths of the lots have been sold and title transferred or until January 1, 2003, whichever first occurs. Responsibility for conducting the business of the association shall be transferred to a board of directors elected by the voting members at a meeting called by the initial board of directors for that purpose. No director shall receive a salary for services performed as a director of the Association. With Board approval, directors and officers may be compensated for reasonable expense incurred while so acting.

Section 3. Election of Directors from Membership.

(A) Election of directors shall be by written ballot as hereinafter provided. In all elections of directors, each voting member in good standing in the Association is entitled to one vote per lot for each director's position to be filled and may cast all such votes for a single director or may distribute them among the number to be voted for, as the member may see fit. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected to fill the number of Board vacancies. A member in good standing shall be a member whose assessments are fully paid prior to a given election.

- (B) Between the first and fifteenth day of December each year, commencing with the year when the last lot is sold, any member in good standing may file with the Secretary of the Association a statement of his or her candidacy for election as a director of the Association for the term beginning immediately following the first annual meeting of the Association held after the filing of such statements, together with endorsements of his or her candidacy signed by at least three (3) voting members in good standing. The Secretary of the Association shall cause notice of each candidacy and a brief biological statement of each candidate to be included in the notice of such annual meeting.
- (C) All elections to the Board shall be made on written ballot by mail or the ballot shall be executed by the voting member at the meeting.

The ballot shall:

- 1. Describe the vacancy to be filled; and
- Set forth the names of those persons who are candidates for the office of director in order in which they filed their statements and endorsements of candidacy with the Secretary of the Association.

Written ballots in a form approved by the Board shall be prepared and mailed by the Secretary to each person entitled to vote simultaneously with the mailing of the notices of the annual meeting of the Association. Ballots and notices shall be sent to a voting member's last known address appearing in the records of the Association.

- (D) One ballot for each lot shall be distributed to members entitled to vote. Where more than one person owns an interest in a lot, this ballot shall be sent to one of the co-owners, as selected by the Secretary.
- (E) After voting, ballots shall be returned in a sealed envelope marked "BALLOT" but not marked in any other way. Each voting member shall be advised that, because of the verification procedures hereinafter set forth, the inclusion of more than one ballot in any one Ballot envelope shall disqualify the return. Such "Ballot" envelope shall be placed in another sealed envelope which shall bear on its face the name of the member, his or her lot number, and such other information as the Board may determine will serve to establish his or her right to cast the vote or votes presented in the ballot contained herein.

Absentee ballots shall be returned to the Secretary of the

138-191
BOOK_PAGE____

Association or the designated official no later than a date established by the Board prior to the annual meeting, at such address as the Board may from time to time determine.

(F) Upon receipt of each mailed ballot, the Secretary or designee shall immediately placed it in a safe place or other locked place until the day fixed by the Board of Directors for the counting of ballots. On that day, the external envelopes containing the "Ballot" envelopes shall be turned over, unopened, to an Election Committee appointed by the President, consisting of a chairman, two tellers and two judges. Each candidate may appoint a representative to be present during the vote count. No other individuals are permitted to be present. This Election committee shall then adopt a procedure which shall establish that the ballots have been submitted properly by members in good standing. Such procedure shall insure that the confidentiality of the personal vote of any member is not disclosed.

The outside envelopes shall thereupon be placed in a safe or other locked place, and the Election Committee shall proceed to the opening of the "Ballot" enevelopes and the counting of the votes. If any "Ballot" envelope is found to contain more than one ballot, all ballots contained in such envelope shall be disqualified. The Election Committee shall certify the results of the count at the annual meeting, and the terms of office of the directors so elected shall commence immediately following such annual meeting.

(G) All outside enevelopes, ballots and statements of candidacy shall be retained by the Secretary for a period one year.

Section 4. The Board of Directors shall have the power to appoint such other officers and agents and to hire such employees as may be necessary for the carrying out of the purposes of the Association.

Section 5. Any officer or agent may be removed and replaced at any time by the Board of Directors.

Section 6. The Board of Directors may establish such committees of the members as the Board deems necessary to carry on the affairs of the Association, and it shall define the powers and duties thereof. Committee members shall be selected and appointed by the President and shall hold office during the tenure of the Board of Directors. The Board shall establish the following standing committees, the members of which shall be appointed by the President.

Notwithstanding any provisions herein, no land or improvements devoted to dwelling use shall be exempt from said assessments, charges or liens.

ARTICLE VII

FINANCE

Section 1. The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on the first day of January each year, unless changed by resolution by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. No later than the 31st day of December a budget of estimated income and expenditure for the next fiscal year shall be adopted by the Board. This budget shall be available for inspection by the members at the office of the Association. A summary of the approved budget shall be included in the notice of the next regular meeting of the Association.

Section 3. The Board of Directors shall determine the official depository or depositories:

- (A) After acceptance of responsibility by the Association for the administration of the assessment funds, the Treasurer shall be authorized to issue checks for expenditures incurred for the Association, provided the amount of such checks issued does not exceed in that fiscal year, the amount budgeted, in accordance with Article IX, Section 1 (E) hereof.
- (B) All checks shall be signed by two officers designated by the Board of Directors. Such officers, as may be designated by the Board, may be bonded in an amount determined by the Board. Indemnity bond premiums shall be paid by the Association.
- (C) An accounting of all the Associations' receipts and disbursements for the previous fiscal year shall be prepared each year before the annual meeting, at which meeting the accounting in written form shall be made available to the membership.

ARTICLE VIII

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

Section 1. It is declared the policy of this Association that special assessments are generally undesirable and shall be levied only in an emergency or under extraordinary circumstances.

Section 2. Special assessments shall be levied only upon the recommendation of the Board and with the consent of voting

138 - 193 BOOK - PAGE 193 members, pursuant to the Restrictive Covenants.

Section 3. The due date of any special assessment shall be fixed in the Resolution authorizing such assessment. Special assessments not paid within thirty days after the due date shall be collected pursuant to the Restrictive Covenants.

ARTICLE IX

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. Powers. The Board of Directors shall have the general power to carry on the affairs of the Association. In order to carry out this general power, the Board shall have authority to undertake the following:

- (A) Designate a banking institution or institutions as depository for the Association's funds in accordance with Article VII, Section 3 of these By-Laws.
- (B) Enter into agreements with Developer concerning all matters pertinent to the Development, including but not limited to agreements relating to the orderly transfer of common properties from the Developer to the Association. Such agreements may contain such provisions as the Directors fees are appropriate and in the best interest of the Association and its members. However, the acceptance by the Association of such agreements and the terms and provisions thereof shall be dependent upon the approval of the majority of those members who vote in person or by absentee ballot at a special or annual meeting of the membership.
- (C) Perform other acts the authority for which has been granted herein, in the Restrictive Covenants, or by law, including the borrowing of money for Association purposes. A resolution by the Board that the interests of the Association requires the borrowing of money shall be sufficient evidence for any person that the borrowing is for a proper corporate purpose. In connections therewith, the Association may assign, pledge, mortgage, or encumber any Association assets or property as security for such borrowings, including future revenues of the Association.
- (D) The Board shall adopt such rules and regulations relating to the use of the common properties and sanctions for noncompliance therewith, as it may deem reasonable necessary in the best interests of the Association and its members. Each voting member and non-voting member of the Association, and others, shall abide by the provisions of these By-Laws as well as any Regulation adopted by the Board of Directors of the

(A) A Finance Committee which shall assist the Board as the Board shall direct in financial budget and accounting matters.

Section 7. Removal of Directors. A Director may be removed by three-fourths vote of the Board of Directors for "just cause" which include self-dealing, conflict of interest, and negligence in performing the responsibilities of a Director. If a motion to remove a director is made at a Board meeting, the motion shall not be acted upon until the next Board meeting. Notice of the motion shall be mailed to the Director whose removal is sought not less than twenty-one days prior to the meeting when the motion is to be considered and acted upon.

Section 8. Meetings of the Board of Directors. The Board shall meet at least annually. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President or by a majority of the Board and shall be held at such place as the call or notice of the meeting shall designate. Notice of a special meeting must be given in writing at least forty-eight hours prior to the date of said special meeting, or notice thereof may be waived by the Directors in writing. After adoption of a resolution setting forth the times of regular meetings, no notice of such meetings shall be required, or waived, but notice of special meetings of the Board shall be given.

Section 9. Action Without Meeting. Unless prohibited by law, where Director action is required before a meeting can be conveniently called, any action which may be taken at a meeting of the Board may be taken without a meeting if the action is consented to in writing by a majority of the Directors entitled to vote on such action at a meeting of the Directors.

Section 10. Quorum. A majority of the Directors shall constitute a quorum to transact business of the Board, and the act of the majority of the Directors present at any duly called meeting shall be deemed to be the act of the Board.

Section 11. Vacancies. All Directors of the Association shall serve until their successors are elected. Any vacancies occurring on the Board created by the death or resignation of a Director shall be filled by the Board. Any vacancy created by the death, removal or resignation of Mark E. Sanders, shall be filled by appointment of the remaining named person or his successor then serving.

ARTICLE X

Officers

Section 1. Officers. The officers of the Association shall

138 195 BOOK PAGE be the President, Vice President, Secretary, and the Treasurer, all of whom shall be a member of the Board.

Section 2. President. The President shall be the executive officer of the Association, and shall preside over all meetings of the Association and the Board of Directors. The President shall be an ex-officio member of all committees except the Nominating Committee. The President shall conduct the affairs of the Association in accordance with these By-Laws and those policies approved by the Board of Directors. The President shall be responsible for the preparation of a full and true report as to activities of the Association during the year of his presidency, which report shall be submitted to the annual meeting, and he shall file the report with the Secretary who shall make it available for inspection by the membership.

Section 3. Vice President. In the absence of the President, or in the event of the President's inability to act or his refusal to act, where such action is lawfully required by these By-Laws or otherwise, the Vice President, or if more than one, the most senior vice president in terms of length of service, is empowered to act and shall thereupon be vested with the powers and duties of the President with respect to the action taken. The Vice President shall also perform such other duties as the President may assign.

Section 4. Secretary. The Secretary of the Association shall keep the minutes of the business and other matters transacted at the meetings of the members and of the Board. The Secretary shall mail, or cause to be mailed all notices required under these By-Laws. The Secretary shall have the custody of the corporate seal and records and maintain a list of the members and their addresses, and perform all other duties incident to the office of Secretary. The Secretary may appoint a recording and correspondence assistant.

Section 5. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have custody of the funds of the Association, collect monies due, pay the obligations of the Association out its funds, and perform such other duties as are incident to the office of the Treasurer. All checks shall be signed by the Treasurer and countersigned by one other officer designated by the Board. The Treasurer, and such other officers as may be designated by the Board of Directors, shall be bonded in an amount to be determined by the Board. Indemnity bond premium shall be paid by the Association.

ARTICLE XI

General Provisions

Section 1. Financial Report to Members. The Directors shall make available to the members at the annual meeting and at other times financial statements of the Association's income and expenses as of the closing date of the prior fiscal year. Such financial statements shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principals so as to present fairly the Association's operating results. Such statements need not be certified.

Section 2. Association Property. No part of net earnings of the Association shall inure to the benefit of or be distributed to its members, directors, officers, or other private persons, except that the Association shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in Article II hereof.

On dissolution of the Association, no member shall be entitled to any distribution of any Association property or asset. Should two-thirds of the members desiring to vote on the questions (subject to the quorum requirements of Article V, Section 5) consent to dissolution, then the Association's property and assets, after satisfaction of all outstanding liens and encumbrances thereof and of all debts and claims against the Association, shall be conveyed either to an institution qualifying for exemption under Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended, or to any unit of state or local government, selected by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE XII

Amendments

These By-Laws may be adopted and amended at any time by the Board of Directors.

Executed on the 19th day of October, 1993.

Mark E. Sanders, Director

Attested By:

138 197

. ;

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

State of Indiana

County of Boone

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared Mark E. Sanders and Jane A. Hendrickson, who acknowledged execution of the foregoing By-Laws as a free and voluntary act and deed.

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal this 19th day of October, 1993.

Notary Public

BELINDA J. CLIPE

My Commission Expires:

Resident of Clinton County

8/24/96

Hendrucks Co

22008

CROSSWINDS ESTATES COMMUNITY COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS

THIS DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, AND RESTRICTIONS, made this $f^{\#}$ day of October, 1993, by SANDERS DEVELOPMENT GROUP, INC., hereafter referred to as the "Declarant";

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Declarant is the sole owner of certain real property located in Hendricks County, Indiana, and described as follows:

See attached Exhibit "A"

AND, WHEREAS, the Declarant desires that a dignified, high quality residential community be developed and maintained on the said property, that all site planning, building and landscaping be attractive and harmonious with the surroundings and that the peaceful character of the property be protected; and, to these ends, desires to subject the property to the covenants, conditions and restrictions hereinafter set forth, it being intended that such covenants, conditions and restrictions shall run with the land and shall be binding upon all persons and entities having or acquiring any right, title or interest in any portion of the said property, and shall inure to the benefit of each owner thereof;

NOW, THEREFORE, Declarant, for and in consideration of the premises and the covenants contained herein, does hereby impose upon the said real property the following protective covenants, conditions, and restrictions:

I

DEFINITIONS

- The word "Lot" shall mean any of the lots located within the above described property; and
- 2. The word "structure" shall mean any building, fence, walkway, driveway, swimming pool, tennis court, solar or energy devices, antennas, exterior lighting, or other item constructed on a Lot, and all additions or alterations to any of the ENTERED FOR RECORD foregoing.

NEW JOHN DOLL PROPERTY HENDRICKS COUNTY RECORDER

138 175 BOOK___PAGE__

II.

LAND USE AND BUILDING TYPE

The Lots shall be used for residential purposes only. No building shall be erected, altered, placed or permitted to remain on any Lot other than one detached, single family dwelling, and attached private garage. Such dwelling shall not exceed two stories in height exclusive of the basement, and shall be used for private dwelling purposes only, by one family only. Such dwelling shall contain a minimum amount of eighteen hundred square feet for a ranch style home and a minimum of two thousand square feet for a multistory home. Ranch style homes will be all brick exterior and multi-story homes will be reviewed by the developer for design and exterior materials to be required. Square footage will be determined by finished interior ground floor living area (exclusive of basements, porches, decks, patios and garages.) Ground floor living area shall include living area in upper levels.

III.

PARTIAL CONSTRUCTION, COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION

No foundation or basement of a building shall be constructed on any Lot except as an integral part of a continuous process of constructing the main structure of such building, which construction must proceed uninterrupted until the structure is completed. The constructon of a building, once begun, must be completed (including, without limitation, all landscaping and exterior painting) within 180 days after its commencement. No dwelling shall be occupied until it is completed.

TV.

STANDARD OF QUALITY OF WORKMANSHIP AND MATERIALS.

With respect to construction of improvements on any Lot, it is required that the standard of architectural design, materials, and workmanship be of superior quality.

APPROVAL OF PLANS/BUILDER AND SPECIFICATIONS BY

No structure shall be erected, placed or (externally) altered on any Lot until the plans/builder selected and specifications therefore (including elevations, materials of exterior, and site plan showing the location of the structure with grading modifications) shall have been approved by the Developer in writing. This paperwork should be directed to Mr. Mark Sanders C/O Sanders Development Group, R. R. 1 Box 347, Whitestown, IN 46075. One copy of all information will be retained by the developer for their files. Roof pitches shall be no less than 8/12 pitch.

VI.

TEMPORARY STRUCTURES, BOATS, AND TRAILERS

No structure of a temporary character, commercial or public vehicle, recreational vehicle, boat, house trailer, camping trailer, quonset hut, shack, privy or satellite dish, mini barns except for children's play tents and wooden playsets, shall be erected, placed or allowed to remain on any Lot; provided, that a boat, a commercial or public vehicle, a camping trailer, a truck-mounted camper, a recreational vehicle, or similar vehicle may be kept on a Lot if it is enclosed in a garage, in a manner approved in writing by the Developer.

VII.

NUISANCES

No noxious or offensive activity shall be carried on in any area of the subdivision, nor shall anything be done or permitted to remain on any Lot, which may be or become a nuisance to a neighboring owner or resident.

VIII.

USE OF LOTS

No Lot or any part thereof shall be used for the conduct of any business, commerce or profession.

138-177 800K_PAGE_

IX.

ANIMALS, LIVESTOCK, AND POULTRY

No wild animals, livestock, or poultry of any kind shall be kept or maintained or bred on any Lot for commercial or any other purposes.

х.

SIGNS

No sign, billboard, or advertising matter shall be erected or displayed on any Lot, except as follows after Developer approval of sign:

- after Developer approval of sign:

 1. During construction of a dwelling, one nonilluminated sign, not exceeding three feet
 by four feet in dimension, may be displayed
 on a Lot for the identification of the
 builder.
 - A temporary, non-illuminated sign, not more than four square feet in area, advertising the property for sale or rent, may be displayed on a Lot.

XI.

SUBDIVISION OF LOTS PROHIBITED

No Lot shall be further divided or resubdivided. Alteration of boundary lines between Lots may be accomplished with the prior written consent of the Developer and in conformity with applicable ordinances and requirements of Hendricks County Planning Commission.

XII. REMOVAL OF MATERIAL FROM LOT; CHANGE OF NATURAL CONTOUR OF LOT; CONSTRUCTION BY OWNERS OF DRIVEWAY ENTRANCES AND APRONS

Except for necessary excavation and grading in connections with construction (in conformity with this Declaration) of improvements on a Lot, no fill, dirt, muck, or rock shall be removed from any Lot, nor shall the elevation of any portion thereof be changed in any manner,

without the prior written approval of the Developer. No owner of a Lot shall cause, suffer, or permit the alteration by unnatural means, obstruction or diversion of the flow of surface water across his Lot, without the prior written consent of the Developer. Construction of driveway entrances and aprons shall be the responsibility of the Lot owner, and such construction shall not interfere with surface water drainage on or onto the road.

XIII.

MAINTENANCE OF LOT AND PROTECTION OF ADJACENT PROPERTY DURING CONSTRUCTION

Each Lot owner shall protect the streets and street shoulders from damage related to construction activities with respect to his Lot, and agrees to keep the streets and driveways clear of equipment and building materials. In connection with any construction, the Lot owner shall take appropriate precautions in excavation and movement of earth, so as to prevent siltation and unnecessary erosion, and he shall also comply at his expense with all applicable governmental laws and regulations regarding siltation control. The streets within the subdivision shall be cleaned by the Lot owner whenever construction activity on his Lot results in a significant accumulation of dirt or debris; and if the Lot owner should fail to do so, after notification from the Declarant that such cleaning is required, then the Declarant may perform such cleaning and charge the reasonable cost thereof to the Lot owner. The foregoing shall in no way create an obligation on Declarant to clean the streets under any circumstances.

XIV.

GARBAGE AND REFUSE DISPOSAL

Refuse and refuse containers shall not be permitted to remain in public view except on days of trash collections. No accumulation of storage of litter, construction debris, or trash of any other kind, shall be permitted on any Lot. Each builder should provide a dumpster and port-o-let for each home being constructed.

XV.

USE OF OUTSIDE CLOTHESLINES

No clothing, laundry or wash shall be aired or dried

BOOK 13 PAGE 179

on any portion of any Lot visible from the road or from another Lot.

XVI.

FENCES

No fences of any kind may be erected or constructed on any portion of any Lot without approval from Developer provided that such fences shall comply with all Hendricks County ordinances.

XVII.

MAILBOXES AND EXTERIOR YARD LIGHT SIDEWALKS

All Lot owners will use the same design of mailbox and posts to be chose by the Developer; the cost of such items will be the Lot owner. All Lot owners will install the same exterior yard light as chose by the Developer and the cost of installation light is the Lot owner. Cost of sidewalks as required by County will be borne by the Lot owner.

XVIII.

ENFORCEMENT

Enforcement of the restrictions and covenants herein contained shall be by proceeding at law or in equity against any person or persons violating or attempting to violate the same, which proceedings may be either to restrain such violation or to recover damages or both; and such proceedings may be brought or prosecuted by the Declarant, its successors or assigns, or by any person or persons owning any Lot or interest therein, or both. Without restricting the generality of the foregoing, any such owner or owners, or the Declarant or its successors or assigns, in lieu of or in addition to any other legal or equitable remedy, may seek an order from a court of competent jurisdiction permitting it or them to enter upon the property where such violation exists and summarily to abate or remove the same, using such force as may be reasonable necessary, at the expense of the owner of such property. Neither the person or persons entering nor the person or persons directing the entry shall be deemed liable for any manner of trespass for such action. In any proceeding to enforce any of these

covenants or restrictions, the party against whom enforcement is obtained shall pay the enforcing parties' costs and attorney's fees.

IXX.

SEVERABILITY

Invalidation of any of these covenants by a judgment or court order shall in no way affect any of the other provisions hereof, which shall remain in full force and effect.

XX.

EXCLUSIONS

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Declaration, nothing herein shall be construed to prevent the Declarant, or any other party constructing improvements in conformity with the provisions hereof, from permitting commercial vehicles and construction equipment to enter and remain on the street or on the Lot being improved, or from storing materials and supplies on such Lot, all to the extent reasonable necessary to facilitate such construction.

XXI.

DURATION

These covenants and restrictions shall run with and bind the land, and shall inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the Association or the owner of any Lot, his legal representatives, heirs, successors, and assigns.

These covenants and restrictions may at any time be amended or revoked by an instrument signed by the owners of all Lots.

"DECLARANT"

SANDERS DEVELOPMENT GROUP, INC.

Mark E. Sanders, President

_ 138 _ 181

BOOK___PAGE_

STATE OF INDIANA COUNTY OF BOONE

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared Mark E. Sanders, President of Sanders Development Group, Inc., who acknowledged the execution of the foregoing Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions.

Witness my hand and Notarial Seal this $\frac{\sqrt{g^{7/2}}}{g}$ day of October, 1993.

SS:

Belinda J. Cripe, Notar

My Commission Expires: 8/24/96

County of Residence: Clinton